
 
 

West Oxfordshire District Council, Council Offices, Woodgreen, Witney, OX28 1NB 
www.westoxon.gov.uk Tel: 01993 861000 

 

Friday, 8 October 2021 

 

Tel: 01993 861522 

e-mail - democratic.services@westoxon.gov.uk 

 

UPLANDS AREA PLANNING SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

You are summoned to a meeting of the Uplands Area Planning Sub-Committee which will be held 

in the Council Chamber, Woodgreen, Witney OX28 1NB on Monday, 18 October 2021 at 2.00 

pm. 
 

 
Giles Hughes 

Chief Executive 

 

 

To: Members of the Uplands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

 

Councillors: Councillor Jeff Haine (Chairman), Councillor Julian Cooper (Vice-Chair), Councillor 

Andrew Beaney, Councillor Nathalie Chapple, Councillor Merilyn Davies, Councillor Ted Fenton, 

Councillor David Jackson, Councillor Alex Postan, Councillor Geoff Saul, Councillor Dean Temple 

and Councillor Alex Wilson 

 

 

Recording of Proceedings – The law allows the public proceedings of Council, Cabinet, and 

Committee Meetings to be recorded, which includes filming as well as audio-recording.  

Photography is also permitted. By participating in this meeting, you are consenting to be filmed. 

 

As a matter of courtesy, if you intend to record any part of the proceedings please let the 

Democratic Services officers know prior to the start of the meeting. 

 

Public Document Pack

Page 1

http://www.westoxon.gov.uk/


 

 

 

AGENDA 
 

1.   Minutes of Previous Meeting (Pages 3 - 8) 

To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 20 September 2021. 

 

2.   Apologies for Absence and Temporary Appointments  

 

3.   Declarations of Interest  

To receive any declarations from Members of the Committee on any items to be 

considered at the meeting 

 

4.   Applications for Development (Pages 9 - 34) 

Purpose: 

To consider applications for development, details of which are set out in the attached 

schedule. 

Recommendation: 

That the applications be determined in accordance with the recommendations of the 
Business Manager – Development Management: 

 
 
Page Application 

Number 

Address Officer 

 

 

11 – 25 

21/02110/FUL Car Park, Guildenford, 

Burford 

 

Joan 

Desmond 

 

26 - 33 21/02573/OUT  7 Cleveley Road Enstone 

 

Joan 

Desmond 

 
 

5.   Applications Determined under Delegated Powers and Appeal Decisions (Pages 35 - 48) 

Purpose: 

To inform the Sub-Committee of applications determined under delegated powers and 

any appeal decisions. 

Recommendation: 

That the reports be noted. 

 

 

(END) 

Page 2



WEST OXFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

Minutes of the meeting of the 

Uplands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

Held in the Council Chamber at 2.00 pm on Monday, 20 September 2021 

PRESENT 

Councillors: Councillor Jeff Haine (Chairman), Councillor Julian Cooper (Vice-Chair), 

Councillor Andrew Beaney, Councillor Merilyn Davies, Councillor David Jackson, Councillor 

Elizabeth Poskitt, Councillor Alex Postan, Councillor Geoff Saul and Councillor Alex Wilson 

Officers:  Abby Fettes (Interim Development Manager), Stuart McIver (Career Grade Planner) 

and Phil Shaw (Business Manager - Development Management) 

25 Minutes of Previous Meeting  

RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting of the Sub-Committee held on 23 August 2021, 

copies of which had been circulated, be confirmed as a correct record and signed by the 

Chairman. 

26 Apologies for Absence and Temporary Appointments  

An apology for absence was received from Councillor Ted Fenton. 

Councillor Elizabeth Poskitt substituted for Councillor Nathalie Chapple . 

27 Declarations of Interest  

There were no declarations of interest from Members or Officers relating to matters to be 

considered at the meeting. 

28 Applications for Development  

The Sub-Committee received the report of the Business Manager – Development 

Management, giving details of applications for development, copies of which had been 

circulated.  

RESOLVED: That the decision on the following applications be as indicated, the reasons for 

refusal to be as recommended in the report of the Business Manager – Development 

Management, subject to any amendments as detailed below:- 

 

21/01126/HHD Lansdowne Cottage East End, Swerford, Chipping Norton 

 

The Interim Development Manager, Abby Fettes introduced the part retrospective application 

for the erection of a rear conservatory and detached greenhouse.  

The following people addressed the Committee: 

A member of the public, Mr Wengraf, had been registered to speak however he confirmed 

that he was only observing and would not address the Committee. 

Mrs Fettes continued with the presentation and outlined the reasons that officers felt the 

application was considered to be acceptable, along with the policies it complied with.  She 

advised that the recommendation was one of approval, subject to the conditions outlined in 

the report 

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



Uplands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

20/September2021 

Councillor Beaney confirmed he had no issue with the conservatory, however, he raised a 

concern relating to light pollution within the greenhouse, at night, and therefore requested 

that permitted development rights be removed. 

Councillor Haine asked the planning officer if this request would be in order and she 

confirmed this would be acceptable. 

Councillor Wilson confirmed he was in the same mind set as Councillor Beaney. 

Councillor Postan proposed that the Officers recommendation should be accepted with an 

additional condition removing permitted development rights. 

Councillor Beaney seconded the proposal. 

Councillor Jackson confirmed he was content with the oak framing and could not see an issue 

with the application. 

The Officers’ recommendation of approval, subject to an additional condition relating to the 

removal of permitted development rights, was put to the vote, and carried unanimously. 

Approved 

 

21/01189/FUL Old Rectory Cottage, Church Street, Kingham 

The Planning Officer,  Stuart McIver introduced the application for a change of use of land to 

increase the domestic curtilage; removal of garden structures and walls; erection of a pool 

house and gym, garden store, greenhouse, art studio and an outdoor pool along with 

associated landscaping. 

The following people addressed the Committee: 

Amy Powell, speaker on behalf of applicant. 

Councillor Poskitt requested clarification of the landscaping regarding the obscurity of the 

swimming pool.  Miss Powell confirmed the pool would be enclosed with two sets of 

Cotswolds stone walls, which were two metres high.  

Mr McIver continued with the presentation and  stated the archaeology report which is a 

prerequisite for the start of works if approved is still outstanding. 

Councillor Beaney noted that condition seven in the report related to planting and future 

planting. He also asked for clarification as to whether the archaeological report needed to be a 

condition. 

Mr McIver advised that the application would not be determined until the information 

regarding the archaeological scheme of investigation had been received and deemed acceptable 

by Oxfordshire County Council Archaeological Services.  

Councillor Beaney therefore proposed approval as per Officers recommendation and this was 

seconded by Councillor Cooper. 

Councillor Postan highlighted the importance of maintaining a ‘soft edge’ and queried if a 

request for tree planting may help with this.  He also suggested the removal of permitted 

development rights.  Mr McIver confirmed that this could be added.  Councillor Postan agreed 

with Councillor Poskitt regarding additional light pollution from the swimming pool at night. 

Councillor Haine noted that the wall was two metres high, so did not feel that additional 

planting was necessary. 

Page 4



Uplands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

20/September2021 

The Chairman clarified  that Councillors Beaney and Cooper were happy to add ’removal of 

Permitted Development’ rights as a condition. 

Councillor Poskitt reminded Members that nothing would happen until the archaeological 

report had been received and subject to no objection from Oxford County Council. The 

Chair agreed this was correct. 

Councillor Beaney proposed the officer’s recommendation as written, subject to the 

additional condition relating to the removal of permitted development rights. This was 

seconded by Councillor Cooper. 

The proposal was then put to the vote, and was carried unanimously. 

Approved 

 

21/02022/FUL - Enstone Airline Hangars, Enstone Airfield North, Banbury Road, Enstone 

The Business Manager, Mr Shaw introduced the part retrospective application for the 

provision of a car park to the North side of a maintenance hangar, accessed from 'Green 

Lane'. Mr Shaw advised that this application was part retrospective because the fence needed 

permission due to the public highway that it backed onto.   In addition, the fence was to be 

reduced to one metre in height, with two panels to be removed. It was noted that landscaping 

could now also be established.  

Councillor Beaney referred to paragraph 5.3 of the report, and suggested an additional 

condition to ensure that the area was  always used as a car park. 

Officers agreed that this was a reasonable request and could be added. 

Councillor Beaney therefore proposed that the Officers recommendation be approved with 

the additional condition restricting future use of the space as a car park.  This was seconded 

by Councillor Wilson. 

The proposal was then put to the vote, and was carried, unanimously. 

Approved 

 

21/02110/FUL Car Park Guildenford 

Interim Development Manager Abby Fettes introduced the application for the expansion of 

the Guildenford car park northwards, to accommodate approximately 150 vehicles, to include 

two new footbridges, one alongside the existing road bridge and the second into the 

churchyard across the millstream.   The report highlighted that this site was located in 

Cotswolds Area Of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB) and a flood zone.  The Interim 

Development Manager  reminded Councillors that this proposal had come before members 

last year and was refused on technical grounds as it had been felt there were other sites in 

Burford that could be considered in more detail. 

The following people addressed the Committee: 

John White Burford Town Councillor – In support of the application 

Councillor Derek Cotterill Ward Councillor In support of the application. 

Councillor Beaney requested clarification because he noted that the Church were supportive 

of the planning request according to the Ward Councillor,  however, Historic England had 

objected. Who has the rights Historical England or the Church? The Interim Development 

Manager clarified that Councillor Beaney was referring to ecclesiastical exemption and that 

Page 5



Uplands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

20/September2021 

this application falls outside of that as its not works to the church. Mrs Fettes concluded her 

presentation by elaborating on technical issues including the impact on the historical setting, 

flood risk and biodiversity. 

Councillor Postan stated that Burford was a gateway to the Cotswolds, attracted many 

tourists and visitors and therefore felt that the car park was needed. He felt that  the 

alternative to be looked at  was too far away and narrow for some people to use effectively. 

He also felt that the area was currently classed as a recreational area, which he felt went 

against Council policy. In addition, he advised that flooding issues were usually resolved within 

24 hours, but the river could do with silting regularly which would help. Councillor Poston 

therefore proposed that the planning request be accepted.  

Councillor Haine asked Councillor Postan to reference a policy reason for the proposal, as it 

was against the officer’s recommendation, and suggested that it could be beneficial for 

Councillors to consider a site visit.  

The Chairman asked for a seconder for Councillor Postan’s proposal, however, no seconder 

was forthcoming. 

The Chairman then proposed that the proposal be deferred until after a site visit had 

occurred and other sites had been fully investigated.  This was seconded by Councillor 

Jackson. 

The proposal for a site visit was put to the vote and was carried. 

Councillor Poskitt suggested that the Highways Department needed to comment on the 

current planning request. 

Councillor Postan reminded members that the Planning Officer had given three reasons for 

refusal, and felt that only one of them would be dealt with by a site visit. Additionally, he felt 

the walking time and speed between car parks and the Church should be taken into account. 

The Chair noted the request. 

Councillor Jackson suggested that during the site visit, Councillors could also look at 

alternative sites. 

Councillor Haine advised that the site visit be set for 14 October at 09:30am. 

Councillor Jackson apologised in advance as he was unable to attend. 

Deferred for a site visit 

 

21/02181/FUL Land South East Of North Fourshire Farm, London Road, Moreton In Marsh 

The Business Manager, Phil Shaw introduced the application for a change of use of land, to be 

used as a residential caravan site for an extended gypsy family with a total of seven caravans, 

together with the laying of hardstanding, erection of five amenity buildings and construction of 

access. The report  also asked members to consider if the site was sustainable. 

The following people addressed the Committee: 

Mr Peter Tufnell on behalf of the Kitebrook Action Group (KAG). 

Mr Shaw continued his presentation, concluding that he understood the need for a settled 

base but not necessary this site.  The site was away from existing settlements, with no 

footwall, cycle path or lighting along the roadside. The site also had very limited public 

transport and was in open countryside with no amenities.  Mr Shaw concluded that the site as 

viewed from the roadside was an attractive area, however the plans did not take this into 

consideration when creating access. 

Page 6



Uplands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

20/September2021 

Councillor Beaney proposed that the Officers recommendation be accepted. 

Councillor Wilson queried the drainage and flooding of the road, Mr Shaw confirmed that the 

drainage engineer had not objected to the application. 

Councillor Jackson noted the ‘Forest replenishment clause’ on page 66 of the report.  And 

stated that although this was not a reason for rejection, it should be noted, because it affected 

the Enforcement Team. Mr Shaw agreed and confirmed that Planning officers could only deal 

with the regulations of planning control. 

Councillor Postan felt that in order to preserve the applicant’s way of life, better sites needed 

to be found. 

Councillor Poskitt aired her concerns regarding the proximity of the site to the road and 

traffic, and did not feel that this site was suitable for small children. She also had concerns that 

this was a cramped site, with cars, animals and caravans. She reiterated that she did not feel 

the  site was suitable for families, particularly with small children and was not sustainable. 

Councillor Davies stated that she was deeply uncomfortable with regards to the Highways 

comments and felt they should be asked to help resolve the issues raised.   

Mr Shaw reiterated that that if suitable sites were found, the planning team would support 

those applications. He reminded Members that West Oxfordshire already had eight sites 

which was well above the requirement and Members should be proud of this achievement.  

Councillor Saul advised that he agreed with Mr Shaw because there was no path, it was unsafe, 

and therefore not compliant with policy H7. He did, however, have sympathy for the applicant 

in trying to find a home base. 

Councillor Jackson seconded Councillor Beaney’s original proposal to accept the 

recommendation of refusal. 

This was then put to the vote and was carried. Councillor Davies voted against the proposal 

of refusal.  

Councillor Beaney noted that there were many trees along that road that may need 

protecting.  

Mr Shaw confirmed this could be taken away and looked at. 

 

Refused 

29 Applications Determined under Delegated Powers and Appeal Decisions  

The report giving details of applications determined under delegated powers was received and 

noted.  

 

There were no Appeal decisions. 

 

Councillor Beaney thanked the planning officers for all their hard work and commented that 

there were not many housing sites coming through. A short discussion ensued between 

Councillors and Mr Shaw, regarding potential larger housing sites that may be forthcoming. 

Page 7



Uplands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

20/September2021 

 

The Meeting closed at 3.31 pm 

 

CHAIRMAN 

Page 8



 

WEST OXFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

  

UPLANDS AREA PLANNING SUB-COMMITTEE 

Date: 18th October 2021 

 

REPORT OF THE BUSINESS MANAGER-DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Purpose: 

To consider applications for development details of which are set out in the following pages. 

Recommendations: 

To determine the applications in accordance with the recommendations of the Strategic Director. 

The recommendations contained in the following pages are all subject to amendments in the light of 

observations received between the preparation of the reports etc. and the date of the meeting. 

List of Background Papers 

All documents, including forms, plans, consultations and representations on each application, but 

excluding any document, which in the opinion of the ‘proper officer’ discloses exempt information as 

defined in Section 1001 of the Local Government Act 1972.        

                                                

Please note that: 

1. Observations received after the reports in this schedule were prepared will be summarised in a 

document which will be published late on the last working day before the meeting and available 

at the meeting or from www.westoxon.gov.uk/meetings  

Page 9

Agenda Item 4

http://www.westoxon.gov.uk/meetings


 

 

 

Page Application Number Address Officer 

 

11 - 25 

 

21/02110/FUL Car Park Guildenford 

 

Joan Desmond 

 

26 - 33 

 

21/02573/OUT 7 Cleveley Road Enstone 

 

Joan Desmond 

 

  

Page 10



Application Number 21/02110/FUL 

Site Address 

Car Park 

Guildenford 

Burford 

Oxfordshire 

OX18 4SE 

 

Date 6th October 2021 

Officer Joan Desmond 

Officer Recommendations Refuse 

Parish Burford Parish Council 

Grid Reference 425399 E       212285 N 

Committee Date 18th October 2021 

 

Location Map 

 

 
 

 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 100024316  

 

 

 

Application Details: 

Page 11



Expansion of the Guildenford car park northwards to accommodate approximately 150 vehicles, to 

include two new footbridges, one alongside existing road bridge and the second into the churchyard 

across the millstream 

 

Applicant Details: 

Derek Cotterill 

Forteys Close 

Guildenford 

Burford 

Oxfordshire 

OX18 4SE 

 

 

1 CONSULTATIONS 

 

Historic England The current proposals for a car park extension are identical to that 

previously submitted in applications 19/00262/FUL and 20/0307/FUL 

apart from the fact that the temporary car park has been omitted 

from the plans. The proposed car park extension would be situated 

on a water-meadow adjacent to the River Windrush close to the 

grade I listed Church of St John the Baptist and would be situated 

within the Burford Conservation Area. 

  

As we have explained in our response to previous applications (our 

letters dated 24/06/2019 and 09/04/2020) The church of St John the 

Baptist is one of the grandest of the grandest Cotswolds churches 

on one of its prettiest towns and the view from the east of its 

handsome tower and spire rising above meadows and trees is lovely 

and should be treasured. Extending the car park would seriously 

compromise this view, harming the significance of the church. 

 

The level of harm would not be substantial but is material and 

should only be accepted if it has been minimised (as required by 

paragraph 190 of the NPPF), is clearly and convincingly justified (as 

is required by paragraph 194 of the Framework) and is outweighed 

by the public benefits (as required by paragraph 196 of the 

Framework).  

 

Since the proposals were last submitted the applicant has 

undertaken a sequential test to look at alternatives, including the 

Bowling Club car park. In our view this is an underused asset. It is 

only 7 minutes walk from the town centre and is accessible directly 

from the A40 via Tanners lane, avoiding the town centre altogether. 

It is likely that it would be better used if it were not so poorly 

signposted. Therefore, we remain of the view that the applicants 

have dismissed this option to readily and are not convinced of the 

robustness of the sequential test.  

 

If it can be conclusively demonstrated that the Bowls Club car park 

is not a suitable alternative the public benefits of providing the car 

Page 12



park need to be weighed against the harm to the significance of the 

Church of St John the Baptist and other negative environmental 

impacts, such as the impact on flooding, in accordance with 

paragraph 196 of the NPPF. It is for the Council to undertake this is 

a balancing exercise but great weight should be given to heritage 

considerations, as required by paragraph 193 of the NPPF (which 

reflects the requirement of sections  66(1) and 72(1) of the Planning 

(Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 to have special 

regard to the desirability of preserving a listed building's setting and 

to pay special attention to the desirability of preserving or 

enhancing the character or appearance of a conservation area). 

 

If the principle of a car park is accepted on this site the harm caused 

needs to be minimised as far as is possible. This could be achieved 

by more sensitive landscaping, adding planting to soften and at least 

partially screen the car park in views from the east. Unless this is 

done we do not consider that the conflict between the proposals 

and the conservation of nearby heritage asset's has been minimised 

as is recommended by paragraph 190 of the NPPF nor justified as is 

required by paragraph 194 of the Framework. 

 

Recommendation 

Historic England has concerns regarding the application on heritage 

grounds. 

We consider that the issues and safeguards outlined in our advice 

need to be addressed in order for the application to meet the 

requirements of paragraphs 190, 193, 194 and 196 of the NPPF. 

 

 

Environment Agency In accordance with paragraphs 155 and 163 of the National Planning 

Policy Framework (NPPF), and Local Plan Policy EH7, we object to 

the proposed development due to its unacceptable risk to the 

environment. We recommend that planning permission is refused 

for the following reasons: 

Reason 1 

The proposed development as it falls within a flood risk vulnerability 

category that is inappropriate to the Flood Zone in which the 

application site is located. The application is therefore contrary to 

the National Planning Policy Framework and its associated planning 

practice guidance and Local Plan Policy EH7. 

The Flood Risk and Coastal Change Planning Practice Guidance 

(PPG) classifies development types according to their vulnerability 

to flood risk and provides guidance on which developments are 

appropriate within each flood zone. This site lies within flood zone 

3b functional floodplain, which is land defined by the PPG as having a 

high probability of flooding. 

The submitted Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) confirms that 

computer modelling has been undertaken which shows that the 

development site falls within flood zone 3b. The development is 

classed as Less Vulnerable in accordance with with table 2 of the 

Page 13



Flood Zones and flood risk tables of the PPG. Tables 1 and 3 make 

it clear that this type of development is not compatible with this 

Flood Zone and therefore should not be permitted. 

Policy EH7 states that only water compatible uses and essential 

infrastructure will be allowed in Flood Zone 3b. 

Reason 2 

The application is contrary to paragraph 163 of the National 

Planning Policy Framework and Local Plan Policy EH7. 

The submitted FRA does not comply with the requirements for site-

specific flood risk assessments, as set out in paragraphs 30 to 32 of 

the Flood Risk and Coastal Change section of the planning practice 

guidance. The FRA does not therefore adequately assess the flood 

risks posed by the development. In particular, the FRA fails to: 

 consider how people will be kept safe from the identified 

flood hazards 

 consider how a range of flooding events (including extreme 

events) will affect people and property 

 take the impacts of climate change into account as flood risk 

mitigation measures to address flood risk for the lifetime of 

the development included in the design are inadequate 

because they propose inadequate flood storage 

compensation for the increase in flood risk resulting from 

this development. 

 

 

Biodiversity Officer Additional information required. 

 

 

Newt Officer The proposal involves a major development within a amber impact 

risk zone, as per District Licence impact risk mapping. This means 

that it falls within a landscape recognised as being suitable habitat to 

support GCN, and that GCN are likely to be present. 

 

However, although the grassland offers suitable terrestrial habitat 

for GCN, the watercourse which surround the site in all directions 

presents a significant barrier to GCN dispersal. Additionally, there 

are no ponds on-site and the closest ponds are separated by these 

barriers.  

 

I therefore have no objection to this development or further 

comments regarding great crested newt licencing or mitigation 

 

 

OCC Archaeological Services The site is located in an area of archaeological interest however the 

development is of a relatively small scale and as such there are no 

archaeological constraints to this scheme. 

 

 

WODC Env Health - Uplands Mr ERS Pollution Consultation I have No Objection in principle. 

 

Page 14



 

OCC Highways  No Comment Received. 

 

 

Conservation Officer The proposed development does not preserve the character of the 

heritage assets and their settings.  The proposed car park and 

footbridges are incongruous in the landscape negatively affecting 

views, eroding historic landscape character, harming the appearance 

of the Conservation Area, and the setting of listed buildings; 

particularly the grade I listed Church.  Consequently, the proposal is 

contrary to national and local legislation and policy including EH9, 

EH10, EH11, EH13, EH15, EH16, and OS4, and NPPF Section 16, 

and therefore I recommend refusal. 

 

 

Parish Council  Burford Town Council have no objection to this application 

 

 

Cotswolds Conservation 

Board 

In reaching its planning decision, the local planning authority (LPA) 

has a statutory duty to have regard to the purpose of conserving 

and enhancing the natural beauty of the National Landscape. The 

Board recommends that, in fulfilling this 'duty of regard', the LPA 

should:  

- ensure that planning decisions are consistent with relevant 

national and local planning policy and guidance; and take into 

account Board publications. 

 

The Board will not be providing a more comprehensive response 

on this occasion. This does not imply either support for, or an 

objection to, the proposed development. 

 

 

2 REPRESENTATIONS 

 

2.1 A summary of the representations received are detailed below.  Full details can be found on the 

Council's website. 

 

13 letters received objecting to the application on the following grounds: 

 The visual impact of a Grade 1 listed Church. 

 The visual impact from the church yard where the view will be cars. 

 The increased traffic along Church Lane which is already often congested. 

 Alternative site would be more appropriate on west side of the Recreation Groud  

 This field is ancient pasture land and should not be developed. Development would mean   

environmental damage and loss of an important piece 

 of nature in the centre of a very busy tourist town. 

 This land is liable to flooding and development would risk pushing the flooding elsewhere  

 contrary to National Planning Policy Framework and Local Plan Policy EH7 

 Harm to biodiversity and environment  

 More visitors will overstretch the local resources. 

Page 15



 This site is vulnerable and important in the centre of historic Burford and should not be 

developed 

 Will exacerbate existing traffic congestion problems 

 We should be looking at ways of maintaining green spaces not covering them with tarmac.  

 Will lead to increased CO2 for the immediate neighbourhood. 

 The increased flow of traffic will lead to aa higher risk of serious accident or death for 

pedestrians 

 A footbridge into the churchyard will increase the footfall and noise into an area where 

mourners are trying to quietly remember the departed or simply sit quietly and reflect. 

 A well constructed and sign posted parking facility on the West Field site could and would be 

used. 

 Provision could be provided for Local shop employees  

 If there has to be more parking it should be at the top of the town, which is relatively empty. 

 Fails to provide electric vehicle charging points 

 Pollution concerns 

 

CPRE - The site lies in the Cotswolds Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty and great weight should be 

given to conserve and enhance its landscape (NPPF 15, 176, 170) and any development resulting the loss 

or deterioration of irreplaceable habitats [such as water meadows] should be refused unless there are 

exceptional reasons. The landscape also features a Grade 1 listed church within an unspoilt and historic 

setting. It is CPRE West Oxfordshire's assessment that exceptional reasons, in this case the local 

economic dividend from more car parking spaces, should not override the loss or deterioration of this 

habitat within the Upper Windrush Valley described in the Local Plan (LP) as an area that is highly 

attractive, remarkably unspoilt and with a rural character and specifically is part of the Upper Windrush 

Conservation Target Area. Without a more recent environmental impact assessment done in the 

Spring/Summer months the range of species and habitats on this site cannot be determined and without 

supporting evidence we do not think exceptional circumstances have been sufficiently demonstrated and 

therefore this application should be refused. 

Sustainability, Flooding and Pollution 

At a time when people are being discouraged to use their cars Burford is plans to increase its car 

parking spaces in an area prone to flooding. We understand that it is a rural town and it is not well 

connected by public transport to other parts of the County, but there are other options for parking 

further away from the water meadows which would be more sustainable. There also appears to be few 

electric charging points available in an era where we are all encouraged to move to electric vehicles 

within the next ten years. 

The flooding issue in Burford is not only a real danger for people living in their homes near the river, but 

a car park on this site would pollute the river with rubber and hydrocarbon pollutants and detrimentally 

affect biodiversity (LP CO16, EH2, 3, 8). The fact there is precedent in the existing car park should not 

hold any sway given that planning permission for this was granted long before the Local Plan was 

adopted and before the real dangers of increased flood risk from climate change was fully known. Water 

meadows are natural flood defences and laying hard standing down, even permeable hard standing, will 

increase the likelihood of more severe flooding. There has been an inadequate flood risk assessment 

published for this plan and we also note the Environment Agency has objected to this application in their 

letter dated 13 July 2021 as the site is in a vulnerable flood zone (LP Policy EH7). In addition to the flood 

risk, the lighting required for a car park would be obtrusive to neighbouring homes and have a 

detrimental effect on the character of the settlement and nature (LP Policy EH8). 

To conclude, CPRE West Oxfordshire urges the planning authority to reject this planning application 

and look again at other viable alternatives within the Town. 

 

27 letters have been received in support of the application: 

Page 16



 Car park extension is much needed 

 Need residents parking permits on Guildenford or have the ridiculously small visitor car park 

relocated elsewhere. 

 The site in Guildenford is the only logical site for an extension to parking 

 The new extension is planned to be green, would be shielded, and would have far less impact on 

the Church than the current car park, and would provide better access into the much enlarged 

Warwick Hall for functions and for visitors to the church from both car parks, and a safer 

pedestrian route into the town. 

 Will benefit town and all of its businesses. 

 Burford has a chronic shortage of parking spaces. 

 Will support the tourist trade and support the local business's. 

 This location is the least intrusive, most suited to minimis environmental impact and the most 

suited to people with disabilities. 

 There will be no increase in traffic as currently all cars drive around to see if there is space. 

 The application to extend the parking area is simple, uncontroversial and practical. It does not 

impact the church (on the other side of the river) or its listed status but rather makes it easier 

for visitors to come to see one of the 15 finest churches in the country.  

 Need additional blue badge parking. 

 

3 APPLICANT'S CASE 

 

3.1 The Design and Access Statement states: 

 

The current WODC car park has 166 spaces and is free to users.  

Its capacity is inadequate to cater for the Warwick Hall requirement and the Burford High Street. 

The WODC 2017 Parking Strategy determined that 200 extra off-street spaces would be required 

before 2031. 

The 2017 parking survey ignored the recently redeveloped Warwick Hall which also requires the use of 

this car park throughout the day. Warwick Hall capacity is 200 persons in the main hall but 350 in the 

entire building. It is now a thriving Business/Community Centre. 

Burford has 100% on street parking occupancy at all times and the car park 100% at weekends. The 

WODC Local Plan 2031 (Policies T4 and BC1) also calls for car parking commensurate with housing 

development. A new development of 91 houses and 60 flats is being built in Buford on the Shilton Road. 

Para 9.6.43 (Pg 269) recognises the problem for Burford and invites "opportunities". 

The WODC Infrastructure Study calls for extra off-street parking in Burford before 2024. 

This application attempts to meet the above need but recognises that various policies are difficult to 

reconcile with it. 

The car park cannot serve both the Warwick Hall /Church requirement and the High Street. Examples 

of large events in the Warwick Hall on Saturday mornings and weekday mornings fill the car park and 

leave the High Street deserted as there is no alternative parking in the town. One Saturday morning 

event, pre Covid, was attended by 150 people from out of town filling the car park; other events 

regularly result in 100+ cars using the car park. It is also difficult to comprehend how any car park 

remote from this Guildenford location could possibly serve the Warwick Hall for functions after 

12:00pm.  

Realisation of this application would provide considerable public benefit to the town and its visitors. 

The High Street has 60 businesses and shops along its east and west side at the lower end of town. The 

current lack of car parking space is detrimental to trade in Burford High Street and an urgent expansion 

of car parking capacity is required.  

Page 17



Burford has a population of approximately 1300 and 252 listed buildings; visitors are essential to keep 

Burford alive. The present car park and the extension would be located in a flood zone 3(b) in a field 

called Bury Orchard. However, the proposal will not alter the flood characteristics of the location. 

The car park expansion proposal is a Burford Town Council project. 

The Sequential Test, separate document, explains that there is no other flat land and suitable location 

for a new Burford car park. In fact Burford has a small second car park, for approx. 50 cars, adjacent to 

the recreation ground, Scout Hut, Cadet Hut and Bowls Club which was signposted for visitors as an 

experiment. Being at the top of the Hill it was ignored by visitors to the town and proved too remote 

for Warwick Hall use.  

Expanding a car park in a flood risk area is recognised as undesirable but no alternative site has been 

found and the necessity to locate extra capacity both close to the Warwick Hall and the High Street 

shopping area outweighs the disadvantages in the opinion of Burford Town Council. The location across 

the millstream from the Grade 1 listed Burford Church is noted but the car park location can be 

screened by careful landscaping and the site is not visible from most of the churchyard whenever foliage 

is present on the surrounding churchyard trees. Historically Bury Orchard was bushes and fruit bearing 

vegetation.  

From the car park site itself only the church spire is visible due to yew trees and foliage during the 

summer months as the attached photographs demonstrate. Fewer visitors in the winter months will 

mean that the car park extension is less likely to have any vehicles in it at all.   

One could say that the view from the churchyard mill stream bank would be improved as presently it is 

field, sewage treatment works and a hill behind. The view would become 12 metres of field area, 

coppice and hill behind; the sewage treatment works would not be visible. 

 

Additional correspondence from applicant - Please consider the sluices up stream of the bridge, behind 

Island House, and how any EA flood risk survey could consider the vagaries of their operation. The 

sluices hold back a head of water, approx 1 metre, all the way to the Barringtons and including a lake 

below Tadpole Farm. When opened inadvertently (QED November 2020) the water floods the WODC 

car park within 10 minutes. There are three sluices here and more along the millstream at Ladyham and 

the Mill. All are owned and controlled by different people and if the opening/closing is not co-ordinated 

the WODC car park floods. 

 

4 PLANNING POLICIES 

 

OS1NEW Presumption in favour of sustainable development 

OS2NEW Locating development in the right places 

OS4NEW High quality design 

EH3 Biodiversity and Geodiversity 

OS3NEW Prudent use of natural resources 

EH1 Cotswolds AONB 

EH7 Flood risk 

EH9 Historic environment 

EH10 Conservation Areas 

EH11 Listed Buildings 

EH13 Historic landscape character 

EH15 Scheduled ancient monuments 

EH16 Non designated heritage assets 

T4NEW Parking provision 

BC1NEW Burford-Charlbury sub-area 

NPPF 2021 

The National Planning Policy framework (NPPF) is also a material planning consideration.  

Page 18



 

 

 

 

5 PLANNING ASSESSMENT 

 

5.1 This application seeks consent for the expansion of the Guildenford car park in Burford northwards 

to accommodate approximately 150 vehicles, to include two new footbridges, one alongside existing 

road bridge and the second into the churchyard across the millstream.  The plans however, indicate a 

capacity for 165 vehicles. 

 

5.2 The site falls within the Cotswold AONB, the Burford Conservation Area and is within 20m of a 

main river. Further, the site is located adjacent to a number of listed buildings including the Grade I 

listed St John The Baptist Church.  

 

5.3 The application is before Members of the Uplands Planning sub-committee for consideration as the 

applicant is a local elected member for Burford, Cllr Derek Cotterill. The application was deferred for a 

members site visit at September committee. 

 

Background Information 

 

5.4 Planning permission was granted in 2017 (ref: 17/02212/FUL) for the change of use of land to 

provide temporary car park for more than 28 days per annum on field to the East of the existing 

Guildenford car park.  

 

5.5 OCC Highways stated that whilst they could not support this proposal as the long term plan for 

parking, it understood the issues associated with the refusal of the temporary consent and agreed that in 

that instance, the scheme was a sensible way forward whilst proper evaluation is undertaken. 

 

5.6 Given that there were identified issues associated with the suitability of the access approach to the 

existing parking area from Guildenford, officers considered that it would be necessary to restrict use of 

the temporary car park to a total of 73 days per year, as suggested by the Town Council, as well as 

limiting the permission for a period of 2 years in order to limit any pollution which may arise from 

increased vehicular use of the land and to assess any impacts.  

 

5.7 A further application was later approved for a further three year temporary consent for the same 

development (ref: 19/01307/FUL).  

 

5.8 Planning permission was refused for a similar scheme for the expansion of the Guildenford car park 

northwards to accommodate approximately 150 vehicles, to include two new footbridges, one alongside 

existing road bridge and the second into the churchyard across the millstream in July 2020 (Ref: 

20/00307/FUL) The reasons for refusal were: 

 

1. The proposed car park and footbridges, by reason of their siting, design and scale, would appear incongruous 

features in the landscape negatively affecting views, eroding historic landscape character, harming the 

appearance of the Conservation Area, and the setting of listed buildings; particularly the grade I listed Church, 

therefore failing to preserve the character of the heritage assets and their settings. It has not been sufficiently 

demonstrated that the public benefits of the development would outweigh the harm identified. Further, the 

proposed development, by reason of its siting, scale and nature would have an urbanising impact failing to 

conserve or enhance the landscape and scenic beauty of the Cotswold AONB. The proposed development is 

Page 19



therefore contrary to policies EH1, EH9, EH10, EH11, EH13, EH15, EH16, and OS4 of the adopted West 

Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031, and advice in the National Planning Policy Framework. 

 

2. The proposed development falls into a flood risk vulnerability category that is inappropriate to the Flood Zone 

in which the application site is located. This site lies within Flood Zone 3b functional floodplain, which is land 

defined by the PPG and the WODC Strategic Flood Risk Assessment as having a high probability of flooding. The 

development is classed as Less Vulnerable in accordance with table 2 of the Flood Zones and flood risk tables of 

the PPG. Tables 1 and 3 make it clear that this type of development is not compatible with this Flood Zone and 

therefore should not be permitted. In addition, the Flood Risk Assessment does not consider the potential impact 

on conveyance of flood water in relation to the proposed footbridges. Therefore, the proposed development is 

contrary to policies OS3 and EH7 of the West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031 and advice in the National Planning 

Policy Framework. 

 

3. It has not been demonstrated that the proposed development would protect or enhance the nature 

conservation value of the site, which is listed as being a habitat of 'principal' importance under s41 of the 

Natural Environment and Rural Communities (NERC) Act 2006. The proposed development is therefore contrary 

to policy EH3 of the adopted West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031 and advice in the National Planning Policy 

Framework. 

 

5.9 Taking into account planning policy, other material considerations and the representations of 

interested parties your officers are of the opinion that the key considerations of the application are: 

 

- Principle; 

- Impact on Heritage Assets; 

- Impact on the Cotswold AONB; 

- Flood Risk;  

- Biodiversity; and  

- Highways Safety.  

 

Principle 

 

5.10 Policy T4 of the adopted West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031 states that proposals for new off 

street public car parking areas will be supported in accessible locations where they would help to ensure 

the continued vitality and viability of town centres, where they would support visitor and tourist 

facilities and attractions or where the local environment is being seriously damaged by on-street parking 

and alternative parking provision is essential.  

 

5.11 Paragraph 7.88 of the WOLP recognises that car parking is under pressure in popular tourist towns 

such as Burford particularly at weekends and there is a need to continue to review car and coach 

parking arrangements to ensure available spaces are efficiently used and provide additional car parking 

where capacity is being exceeded. The Council's Parking Strategy document was prepared to help 

inform decisions about the quantum and distribution of parking needed within the District. It's clear 

from the West Oxfordshire Parking Strategy document that more off-street car park capacity is 

required in Burford. The document also states that the difficult question is where to provide this 

capacity as there is a lack of available space in the town, land costs are high and there are conservation 

issues. Your officers concur that the principle of providing additional off-street parking in Burford is 

acceptable and required in some form. However, this is subject to the proposals compliance with the 

other plan policies and this is a highly constrained site in terms of heritage and environmental impacts.  

As set out above, a similar application for an expanded car park was refused in July 2020 and it is 

necessary to consider whether this application addresses the previous reasons for refusal. 

Page 20



 

 

 

Impact on Heritage Assets 

 

5.12 The site lies within the Burford Conservation Area and lies within close proximity to a number of 

listed buildings, including the Grade I listed Church of St John the Baptist. 

 

5.13 The Local Authority has a statutory obligation to give special regard to the desirability of preserving 

listed buildings and conservation areas; and their settings: Section 66(1) of the Planning (Listed Buildings 

and Conservation Areas) Act 1990, states that: special regard should be given to the desirability of 

preserving a listed building or any features of special architectural or historic interest which it possesses. 

Paragraph 199 of the National Planning Policy Framework states that when considering the impact of 

new development on the significance of a listed building, great weight should be given to its 

conservation, and the more important the asset, the greater the weight should be. It continues that 

significance can be harmed or lost from development within its setting.  The policy objectives set out in 

the NPPF (section 16) establish that there is a twin role for setting: it can contribute to the significance 

of a heritage asset, and it can allow that significance to be appreciated.   

 

5.14 Proposals are supported in Conservation Areas where they can be shown to preserve or enhance 

the special interest, character, appearance or setting of the area. In particular, the location, form and 

scale of development should be sympathetic to its surrounding context, not be detrimental to views 

within, into, or out of the area and should not harm the original curtilage or pattern of development 

within the area. 

Whilst the applicant has provided a design and access statement, and attempted to assess the impact of 

their proposal on the significance of the heritage assets, in accordance with NPPF Para 194 (and Historic 

England guidance, it does not adequately demonstrate a comprehensive assessment, and given due 

consideration to the significance of the heritage assets affected, particularly to the church which is of the 

highest significance.  There are also many other heritage assets to consider, including other listed 

buildings.  The assessment fails to take into consideration the impact the proposal will have to heritage 

assets, including their setting, views into and out from, and any potential archaeology - not only for the 

proposed car park and associated paraphernalia, but also for the two footbridges.   

 

5.15 In consideration to Burford Conservation Area, and in accordance with policy, existing buildings, 

land uses, historic settlement patterns and open spaces should remain largely undisturbed, and special 

care must be taken to ensure that the setting, and views into and out of the Conservation Area, as well 

as views within the Conservation Area, are not harmed.  In this case, the current proposal will have a 

deleterious impact on the Conservation Area by negatively affecting its views, its appearance, eroding its 

historic landscape character and harming the settings of its buildings. 

 

5.16 Furthermore, there are a number of heritage assets located opposite the proposed application site 

that will be impacted; however, in particular, the Church is the most significant heritage asset affected.  

Burford Church is grade I listed, and therefore, of high importance, so any harm or loss of, the 

significance should be clearly and convincingly justified, and substantial harm to the grade I Church, 

should be wholly exceptional.  The views of the spire of the church are available from the surrounding 

fields in contrast with close up views to the church from other locations, which are urban in character. 

There are also views from the church itself out over the water-meadows which are filtered by trees. 

The rural setting of the church when viewed from the east considerably enhances the aesthetic appeal of 

this important building and therefore contributes to its significance.  

 

Page 21



5.17 The proposed car park extension would entail a high degree of harm to the significance of the 

church as views of it from the east would be compromised by vehicles in the foreground, and a hard 

core ground-surface, with associated car-park paraphernalia (e.g. pay stations and signage), this is as 

opposed to the existing open grassed / meadow land.   

 

5.18 Historic England (HE) has also advised that creating a car park here would harm the significance of 

the church and the applicant has not demonstrated that this harm is justified or would be outweighed by 

the public benefits.  HE acknowledge the sequential test undertaken to look at alternative sites for the 

additional car parking, including the Bowling Club car park, which they consider is an underused asset 

that is only 7 minutes’ walk from the town centre and is accessible directly from the A40 via Tanners 

lane, avoiding the town centre altogether. HE consider that it is likely that it would be better used if it 

were not so poorly signposted and remain of the view that the applicants have dismissed this option too 

readily and are not convinced of the robustness of the sequential test.  The Conservation Officer also 

considers that the Bowls Club car park is still a better alternative, with very little difference in distance, 

given that this current proposal will have significantly more harm on heritage assets. 

 

5.19 Therefore, your officers are of the opinion that the proposed development does not preserve the 

character of the heritage assets and their settings.  The proposed car park and footbridges are 

incongruous in the landscape negatively affecting views, eroding historic landscape character, harming 

the appearance of the Conservation Area, and the setting of listed buildings; particularly the grade I 

listed Church.  Consequently, the proposal is contrary to national and local legislation and policy 

including EH9, EH10, EH11, EH13, EH15, EH16, OS4 and the NPPF. 

 

Impact on the Cotswold AONB 

 

5.20 The site lies within the Cotswolds AONB, a nationally important designation, where great weight 

should be given to conserving and enhancing landscape and scenic beauty.  This duty is reflected in policy 

EH1 of the local plan and the NPPF which require great weight to be given to conserving and enhancing 

landscape beauty in Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty.  This duty is also embodied in the 

Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000.  The Cotswolds Conservation Board's Management Plan and 

guidance documents are also material considerations in decision making relevant to the AONB.  In this 

instance the proposal is considered by your officers to appear as an incongruous urbanising feature 

which fails to conserve or enhance the landscape and scenic beauty of the Cotswold AONB.  

 

Flood Risk 

 

5.21 The site lies within the functional flood plain (Zone 3B).  A Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) has been 

submitted in support of the application which concludes: 

 The proposed extension to the existing Burford Guildenford Car Park will make minimal 

changes to the existing terrain geometry, has been designed to be permeable and can still be 

allowed to flooded if needs be.  

 The NPPF considers that 'water-compatible' infrastructure is appropriate within Flood Zone 3b.   

 The hydraulic modelling used as evidence shows very shallow depths (less than 300mm) for all 

modelled return periods with less than 50mm in the 5% AEP event.  

 The hydraulic modelling used as evidence show Low Hazard (Caution) for all return periods.  

 Hydraulic modelling has confirmed that the changes in flood depth within the site are negligible 

and that there is no measurable change in flood risk to third parties as a result of the extension 

of Burford Guildenford Car Park except for some reduction in flood water levels to land in the 

eastern side of the Windrush.  

Page 22



 Implementation of a SuDS system should serve to reduce surface water run-off from the site, 

whereby not increasing flood risk elsewhere.  

 The flood risk from Surface water, sewers and groundwater have been evaluated and are not 

considered significant.  

 

5.22 The Environment Agency (EA) have commented however, that the submitted FRA does not comply 

with the requirements for site-specific flood risk assessments, as set out in the PPG entitled 'Flood Risk 

and Coastal Change and does not therefore adequately assess the flood risks posed by the development. 

The EA object to the application on 2 grounds. 

 

5.23 The first ground is that the proposed development falls within a flood risk vulnerability category 

that is inappropriate to the Flood Zone in which the application site is located. The application is 

therefore contrary to the NPPF and its associated planning practice guidance and Local Plan Policy EH7.  

The Flood Risk and Coastal Change PPG classifies development types according to their vulnerability to 

flood risk and provides guidance on which developments are appropriate within each flood zone. Flood 

zone 3b functional floodplain, is land defined by the PPG as having a high probability of flooding.  The 

development is classed as Less Vulnerable in accordance with table 2 of the Flood Zones and flood risk 

tables of the PPG. Tables 1 and 3 make it clear that this type of development is not compatible with this 

Flood Zone and therefore should not be permitted.  Similarly, Policy EH7 of the Local Plan states that 

only water compatible uses and essential infrastructure will be allowed in Flood Zone 3b. 

 

5.24 The second reason relates to the inadequacy of the FRA which does not adequately assess the 

flood risks posed by the development. In particular, the FRA fails to:  

 consider how people will be kept safe from the identified flood hazards  

 consider how a range of flooding events (including extreme events) will affect people and 

property  

 take the impacts of climate change into account as flood risk mitigation measures to address 

flood risk for the lifetime of the development included in the design are inadequate because they 

propose inadequate flood storage compensation for the increase in flood risk resulting from this 

development.  

 

Biodiversity 

 

5.25 The Council's Ecologist has had consideration of the Ecological Appraisal dated March 2020 

submitted to support the application and has advised that the information is not sufficient enough to 

enable a positive determination of the application in these terms.  The appraisal is also based on a site 

assessment carried out in May 2019 and as such is now out of date.   The status/condition of the 

habitats as well as the potential for protected and priority species may have changed since the initial 

assessment was carried out. An updated Ecological Assessment has been requested.  Notwithstanding, 

the need for an updated assessment, further consideration of alternative sites and/or methods to avoid 

impacting on priority habitats and protected species is required. In addition, details of compensation 

measures to minimise harm to protected and/or priority habitats and species (e.g. precautionary method 

statements for the above species, additional mitigation to compensate for the loss of priority grassland 

habitat, pollution prevention measures, buffer strips and hedgerow planting) have not been considered 

or submitted, nor have details regarding the long-term management and monitoring of habitats and 

species. Therefore, it has not been demonstrated that the biodiversity of this site and the wider West 

Oxfordshire habitat network will be protected or enhanced as set out in policy EH3 of the adopted 

West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031.  

 

Page 23



5.26 These issues were previously raised and have not been addressed in this new application.   The 

applicant has advised that no updated assessment can be undertaken due to lack of finances. 

 

Highways 

 

5.27 The Guildenford car park has capacity for 166 vehicles and is free to use. The main pedestrian 

route from the car park to the town centre is along Church Lane which has sections with no off-street 

pedestrian footway. This proposal seeks to extend car-park to cater for a further 165 vehicles. The 

proposal also includes 2 new foot bridges, 1 adjacent to existing vehicle bridge into car park which will 

be converted solely for vehicles and 1 into churchyard. This would offer a safer route for pedestrians. 

 

5.28 Whilst the Local Highway Authority has not commented on this latest application, they previously 

concluded that whilst its disappointing that the applicants have not explored additional measures such as 

increasing bus services to make it more attractive and additional covered cycle parking, or reducing the 

times it offers free parking (for example to 6 hours) so not to discourage visitors but so it is not abused 

by residents and commuters, the proposal will have some significant benefits.  

 

5.29 Whilst recognising the proposal may result in an increase in traffic generation, it should also be 

stated that the existing issues with getting in/out of the car park and finding a space in busy periods 

causes delays and congestion along Guildenford and Church Lane leading to a reduction in air quality 

and pedestrian/cycle safety. The Local Highway Authority has stressed however that an increase of 

vehicle movements without improved pedestrian safety is not acceptable and therefore the bridge into 

the churchyard is a critical element. It is also important to the acceptability of the planning application 

that 2 lanes of traffic can adequately pass simultaneously on the bridge, a swept path analysis is therefore 

required. If this is not possible the existing vehicular bridge will need to be widened. 

 

5.30 Given the existing issues with the car park in summer months, the expected future year growth in 

the area and the recognition within West Oxfordshire's Parking Strategy that additional car parking is 

required in Burford, Oxfordshire County Council do not object to this application on highway grounds. 

 

Conclusion 

 

5.31 In light of the above, it has not been sufficiently demonstrated that any public benefits derived from 

additional parking in Burford would outweigh the significant harm identified to both the built and natural 

environment in Burford contrary to policies OS2, OS4, EH1, EH3, EH7, EH9, EH10, EH11, EH13, EH15, 

EH16 of the adopted West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031 and the relevant provisions of the NPPF. 

 

6 REASONS FOR REFUSAL 

 

1. The proposed car park and footbridges, by reason of their siting, design and scale, would appear 

incongruous features in the landscape negatively affecting views, eroding historic landscape character, 

harming the appearance of the Conservation Area, and the setting of listed buildings; particularly the 

grade I listed Church, therefore failing to preserve the character of the heritage assets and their settings. 

It has not been sufficiently demonstrated that the public benefits of the development would outweigh 

the harm identified. Further, the proposed development, by reason of its siting, scale and nature would 

have an urbanising impact failing to conserve or enhance the landscape and scenic beauty of the 

Cotswold AONB. The proposed development is therefore contrary to policies EH1, EH9, EH10, EH11, 

EH13, EH15, EH16, and OS4 of the adopted West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031, and Section 16 and 

paragraph 172 of the National Planning Policy Framework 2019. 

 

Page 24



2. The proposed development falls into a flood risk vulnerability category that is inappropriate to the 

Flood Zone in which the application site is located. This site lies within Flood Zone 3b functional 

floodplain, which is land defined by the PPG and the WODC Strategic Flood Risk Assessment as having 

a high probability of flooding. The development is classed as Less Vulnerable in accordance with table 2 

of the Flood Zones and flood risk tables of the PPG. Tables 1 and 3 make it clear that this type of 

development is not compatible with this Flood Zone and therefore should not be permitted. In addition, 

the Flood Risk Assessment does not comply with the requirements for site-specific flood risk 

assessments, as set out in the PPG. The FRA does not therefore adequately assess the flood risks posed 

by the development. In particular, the FRA fails to consider how people will be kept safe from the 

identified flood hazards; consider how a range of flooding events (including extreme events) will affect 

people and property and fails to take the impacts of climate change into account as flood risk mitigation 

measures to address flood risk for the lifetime of the development included in the design are inadequate 

because they propose inadequate flood storage compensation for the increase in flood risk resulting 

from this development. 

 

3. It has not been demonstrated that the proposed development would protect or enhance the nature 

conservation value of the site, which is listed as being a habitat of 'principal' importance under s41 of the 

Natural Environment and Rural Communities (NERC) Act 2006. The proposed development is 

therefore contrary to policy EH3 of the adopted West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031 and paragraphs 170 

and 175 of the National Planning Policy Framework 2019.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Contact Officer: Joan Desmond 

Telephone Number: 01993 861655 

Date: 6th October 2021 

  

Page 25



Application Number 21/02573/OUT 

Site Address 

7 Cleveley Road 

Enstone 

Chipping Norton 

Oxfordshire 

OX7 4LL 

 

Date 6th October 2021 

Officer Joan Desmond 

Officer Recommendations Refuse 

Parish Enstone Parish Council 

Grid Reference 438084 E       224152 N 

Committee Date 18th October 2021 

 

Location Map 

 

 
 

 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 100024316  

 

 

 

Application Details: 

Page 26



Outline Planning Application for the erection of 4 dwellings, closure of existing access, and creation of 

separate access for No. 7 Cleveley Road and new access for the proposed dwellings, with parking layout 

and landscaping scheme (with some matters reserved) (Amended Plans) 

 

Applicant Details: 

Mr And Mr David And Robert Stevens 

7 Cleveley Road 

Enstone 

Oxon 

OX7 4LL 

 

1 CONSULTATIONS 

 

OCC Highways The proposal, if permitted, will not have a significant detrimental 

impact ( in terms of highway safety and convenience ) on the 

adjacent highway network. 

Note a 6.0m manoeuvring space is required at parking spaces in 

order that vehicles may enter/leave parking spaces. 

 

Recommendation: 

  

Oxfordshire County Council, as the Local Highways Authority, 

hereby notify the District Planning Authority that they do not object 

to the granting of planning permission, subject to the following 

conditions: 

 

- G11 access specification 

- G25 drive etc specification 

- G13 close ex access and reinstate public highway 

- G32 turning facility 

 

INFORMATIVE  

 

Please note works are required to be carried out within the public 

highway, the applicant shall not commence such work before formal 

approval has been granted by Oxfordshire County Council by way 

of legal agreement between the applicant and Oxfordshire County 

Council 

 

 

WODC Drainage Engineers No objection subject to drainage condition. 

 

 

ERS Env. Consultation Sites Mr ERS Pollution Consultation Thank you for consulting our team, I 

have looked at the application in relation to contaminated land and 

potential risk to human health.  

Please consider adding the following condition to any grant of 

permission.  

 

Page 27



1. In the event that contamination is found at any time when 

carrying out the approved development, it must be reported in 

writing immediately to the Local Planning Authority. An 

investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken in accordance 

with the requirements of Environment Agency's Model Procedures 

for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11, and where 

remediation is necessary a remediation scheme must be prepared, 

to bring the site to a condition suitable for the intended use by 

removing unacceptable risks to human health, buildings and other 

property, and which is subject to the approval in writing of the 

Local Planning Authority. 

 

Reason: To prevent pollution of the environment in the interests of 

the amenity. 

Relevant Policies: West Oxfordshire Local Planning Policy EH8 and 

Section 15 of the NPPF. 

 

 

WODC Env Health - Uplands Mr ERS Pollution Consultation I have No Objection in principle to 

this outline application. 

 

 

Thames Water Waste Comments - Thames Water would recommend that petrol / 

oil interceptors be fitted in all car parking/washing/repair facilities. 

Failure to enforce the effective use of petrol / oil interceptors could 

result in oil-polluted discharges entering local watercourses. 

 

We would expect the developer to demonstrate what measures will 

be undertaken to minimise groundwater discharges into the public 

sewer.  

 

With regard to SURFACE WATER drainage, Thames Water would 

advise that if the developer follows the sequential approach to the 

disposal of surface water we would have no objection.  

 

With regard to WASTE WATER NETWORK and SEWAGE 

TREATMENT WORKS infrastructure capacity, we would not have 

any objection to the above planning application, based on the 

information provided. 

Water Comments - On the basis of information provided, Thames 

Water would advise that with regard to water network and water 

treatment infrastructure capacity, we would not have any objection 

to the above planning application. 

 

 

Parish Council Although Enstone Parish Council supports the application, it is very 

concerned regarding the parking and safety issues and requests that 

double yellow lines and bollards are placed around the area. 

 

Page 28



Please can the applicants also consider some kind of sustainable 

renewable energy at the properties? 

 

 

OCC Highways Manoeuvring areas now acceptable. No further comments. 

 

 

Parish Council  No Comment Received. 

 

 

Biodiversity Officer  No Comment Received. 

 

 

2 REPRESENTATIONS 

 

Two letters received: 

 Everyday we have to struggle on and off our drive way due to cars being parked opposite it on 

an already extremely busy Cleveley road. Is there really going to be enough parking or will they 

spill over and park on the road causing more issues? 

 Concerned about being overlooked and being opposed on. 

 Loss of wildlife  

 added traffic and noise pollution 

 

3 APPLICANTS CASE 

 

In reply to the question from one other resident in Cleveley Road, the scheme should ensure no 

additional on street parking for 2 reasons. The first is we have complied with the standard set by the 

Highways authority for off street parking. The second is we have gone further and added space of at 

least 2 additional spaces, above and beyond the County Council requirement. 

The nearby resident lives at least 21 metres (70 feet) from the site, nobody else, living closer, has raised 

this concern. 

Our recent observations of parking seems to conclude there is no on street issue at our end of Cleveley 

Road. 

A car parked on the road opposite the resident's house at No. 4 doesn't constitute a reason for refusal 

of this application. Perhaps this is an issue between neighbours that might to be discussed amicably, to 

achieve a better parking situation. 

 

The community as a whole and as expressed by the Parish Council appear to have no objection in 

principle to development.   This combined site, which for many years  in so far as the land outside No. 7 

is concerned, has been vacant, formerly used for workshop purposes and accommodating various 

buildings and a caravan, all in a deteriorating condition. 

 

It would have been a simple matter to submit an outline application with all matters reserved for later 

approval, to be approved as part of a full or detailed application later. 

 

The applicants however, with my support, wanted "to do more for the community", hence the request 

for smaller scale dwellings that then led us to providing some detail to show they can be accommodated 

on the site, in a density similar to other housing in the locality. 

 

Page 29



To do so would also mean introducing a bio-diversity enhancement; we have included a basic layout of 

this, full details to be provided as part of a conditional consent.  There are no trees of special 

significance worthy of protection by TPO, the area has no listed buildings, no conservation area status, 

and apart from the highway stone walling, no special open space characteristics or other features 

worthy of protection. 

 

We remain willing to provide more information, but feel for the purposes of an outline that might lead 

to a conditional consent, this must now be sufficient information. 

 

4 PLANNING POLICIES 

 

OS1NEW Presumption in favour of sustainable development 

OS2NEW Locating development in the right places 

OS3NEW Prudent use of natural resources 

OS4NEW High quality design 

H2NEW Delivery of new homes 

H4NEW Type and mix of new homes 

T1NEW Sustainable transport 

T2NEW Highway improvement schemes 

T3NEW Public transport, walking and cycling 

T4NEW Parking provision 

EH2 Landscape character 

EH3 Biodiversity and Geodiversity 

NPPF 2021 

NATDES National Design Guide 

The National Planning Policy framework (NPPF) is also a material planning consideration.  

 

PLANNING ASSESSMENT 

 

5.1 The applicant seeks outline planning permission for the erection of 4 dwellings, closure of existing 

access, and creation of separate access for No. 7 Cleveley Road and new access for the proposed 

dwellings, with parking layout and landscaping scheme.  All matters are unreserved apart from 

appearance.  

 

5.2 The site lies at the eastern edge of the village of Enstone.  The site comprises No 7 Cleveley Road, a 

semi-detached property which is located at the junction of Cleveley Road and Banbury Road.  The site is 

enclosed by a low stone boundary wall along the roadsides. 

 

5.3 The application is to be heard before the Committee as the views of the Parish Council are contrary 

to the proposed recommendation. 

 

Planning History  

 

5.4  An outline application for the erection of 6 dwellings, closure of existing access, and creation of 

separate access for No. 7 Cleveley Road and new access for the proposed dwellings, with parking layout 

and landscaping scheme (with some matters reserved) was withdrawn in July 2021 (Ref: 21/01689/OUT). 

 

5.5 Taking into account planning policy, other material considerations and the representations of 

interested parties your officers are of the opinion that the key considerations of the application are: 

- Principle  

Page 30



- Layout and scale 

- Highway Issues 

- Residential Amenity Impact 

- Biodiversity Issues 

 

Principle 

 

5.6 Enstone is classified in the Local Plan 2031 as a village, which is suitable for limited development 

which respects the village character and local distinctiveness and would help to maintain the vitality of 

the community (policy OS2). Housing Policy H2 states that new dwellings will be permitted in certain 

circumstances including on undeveloped land within the built up area provided that the proposal is in 

accordance with the other policies in the plan and in particular the general principles set out in Policy 

OS2.  

 

5.7 Policy OS2 states that villages such as Enstone are suitable for limited development, which respects 

the village character and local distinctiveness and would help maintain the vitality of these communities. 

The general principles set out in OS2 state, inter alia, that development should form a logical 

complement to the existing scale and pattern of development and/or character of the area; be of a 

proportionate and appropriate scale to its context; not involve the loss of an area of open space or 

other features that makes an important contribution to the character and appearance of the area and 

conserve and enhance the natural, historic and built environment. 

 

5.8 As such, the proposal is assessed against the general principles of Policy OS2 in more detail below. 

 

Layout and Scale 

 

5.9 Paragraph 130 of the NPPF is clear that development proposals should function well and add to the 

overall quality of the area; are visually attractive as a result of good architecture, layout and appropriate 

and effective landscaping; are sympathetic to local character and history including the surrounding built 

environment and landscape setting and create places that are safe, inclusive and accessible and have a 

high standard of amenity for existing and future users.  Policies OS2 and OS4 of the Local Plan reflects 

this advice and encourages development of a high quality design that responds positively to and respects 

the character of the site and its surroundings.  The importance of achieving high quality design is 

reinforced in the National Design Guide.  

 

5.10 This application seeks outline permission, with all matters unreserved, except for appearance. 

 

5.11 In terms of layout, the site plan indicates 2 pairs of semi-detached properties fronting onto Banbury 

Road with parking in front.  The pair of units at the northern end of the site would be larger in size and 

scale.  The scale details submitted indicate that the 2 bed units would be 7.2m height and the 3 bed units 

7.95m high.  Given the change in land levels, ridge heights would not however exceed that of No7 

Cleveley Road (7.45m). The existing access off Cleveley Road is to be closed with two new accesses 

created off Cleveley Road to serve the proposed development and the existing property.  The creation 

of the new accesses will involve the removal of part of the existing stone boundary wall.  The site 

occupies a prominent corner location, at the junction of Cleveley Road and Banbury Road.  Open 

countryside adjoins the site to the East.  On the opposite corner, development is set back from the 

main road and separated by an open green area.  Similarly, development on the western side of the road 

is separated by a wide grass verge.  The site principally comprises the side garden area of No 7 which 

has an open context with some low single story outbuildings.  All the trees within the site are to be 

removed including a mature Beech tree in the north eastern corner of the site.  The agent has advised 

Page 31



that the tree has been fire damaged and is not worthy of retention but no tree survey or arboricultural 

report has been submitted with the application.  The land slopes down to the north with a range of 

single story flat roofed garage buildings located on the opposite side of a small open grassed area.   

Given the topography of the site the garages cannot be seen from the junction or views from the south.  

The development will project further east, beyond the existing build line of existing housing and would 

not form a logical complement to the existing character and pattern of development.  The development 

including the new access road and parking areas would harm the open context of the site and would 

appear visually intrusive and would be harmful to the sensitive rural edge of village setting which adjoins 

open landscape to the east. 

 

Highway Issues 

 

5.12 The existing access off Cleveley Road is to be closed with two new accesses created off Cleveley 

Road to serve the proposed development and the existing property.  OCC Highways has commented 

that the proposal, if permitted, would not have a significant detrimental impact (in terms of highway 

safety and convenience) on the adjacent highway network.  The latest revised plans also ensure that 

adequate manoeuvring areas are provided.   

 

Residential Amenity Impact 

 

5.13 Adopted Local Plan Policy OS2 states that all development should be compatible with adjoining 

uses and not have a harmful impact on the amenity of existing occupants.   An objection has been 

received from No 33 Cleveley Road, a property located to the rear of the site, raising concerns relating 

to overlooking and overbearing impact.  Given however, the proposed orientation of the dwellings and 

separation distances, it is considered that the detailed design of the dwellings could ensure that there 

are no amenity issues resulting from the development.   

 

Biodiversity Issues 

 

5.14 Whilst a Biodiversity Plan has been submitted which indicates that the clearance of vegetation will 

be compensated for through a number of measures such as the creation of wildflower areas, native 

hedgerows and new native tree planting, the features proposed to be created and planted would be 

within the rear gardens of the dwellings meaning that the management of these features could not be 

secured in the long-term and as such would not sufficiently compensate for the vegetation lost.  

 

5.15 In addition, inadequate ecological information has been submitted and the Biodiversity Officer has 

requested the submission of a Preliminary Ecological Appraisal.  No such appraisal has been submitted 

and as such the potential impact on protected and priority species is unknown. 

 

Conclusion 

 

5.16 In light of the above assessment, the proposed development, by reason of its layout and scale 

would not form a logical complement to the existing scale and pattern of development and character of 

the area and would be harmful to the rural edge setting of the village by reason of its visual intrusion and 

projection of development further to the east.  In addition, inadequate ecological information has been 

submitted and the Biodiversity Plan does not sufficiently compensate for vegetation lost.  As such, the 

proposed development is considered to be contrary to the provisions of policies OS2, OS4, EH3 and H2 

of the adopted West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031 as well as the relevant paragraphs of the NPPF 2021. 

 

 

Page 32



 

 

6 REASONS FOR REFUSAL 

 

 

1.  The proposed development, by reason of its layout and scale would not form a logical complement 

to the existing scale and pattern of development and character of the area and would be harmful to the 

sensitive rural edge setting of the village by reason of its visual intrusion and projection of development 

further to the east.  As such, the proposed development is considered to be contrary to the provisions 

of policies OS2, OS4 and H2 of the adopted West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031 as well as the relevant 

paragraphs of the NPPF 2021. 

 

2.  Inadequate ecological information has been submitted to assess the potential impact on protected 

and priority species and the submitted Biodiversity Plan does not sufficiently compensate for vegetation 

lost.  As such, the proposed development is considered to be contrary to the provisions of Policy EH3 

of the adopted West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031 as well as the relevant paragraphs of the NPPF 2021. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Contact Officer: Joan Desmond 

Telephone Number: 01993 861655 

Date: 6th October 2021 

 

 

 

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank



DELGAT 
 

West Oxfordshire District Council – DELEGATED ITEMS  

 

Application Types Key 

 

Suffix 

 

 Suffix  

ADV Advertisement Consent LBC Listed Building Consent 

CC3REG County Council Regulation 3 LBD Listed Building Consent - Demolition 

CC4REG County Council Regulation 4 OUT Outline Application 

CM County Matters RES Reserved Matters Application 

FUL Full Application S73 Removal or Variation of Condition/s 

HHD Householder Application POB Discharge of Planning Obligation/s 

CLP 

CLASSM 

 

HAZ 

PN42 

 

PNT 

NMA 

WDN 

Certificate of Lawfulness Proposed 

Change of Use – Agriculture to 

Commercial 

Hazardous Substances Application 

Householder Application under Permitted 

Development legislation. 

Telecoms Prior Approval 

Non Material Amendment 

Withdrawn 

 

CLE 

CND 

PDET28 

PN56 

POROW 

TCA 

TPO 

 

FDO 

Certificate of Lawfulness Existing 

Discharge of Conditions 

Agricultural Prior Approval 

Change of Use Agriculture to Dwelling 

Creation or Diversion of Right of Way 

Works to Trees in a Conservation Area 

Works to Trees subject of a Tree 

Preservation Order 

Finally Disposed Of 

 

Decision 

Code 

 

 

Description 

 

Decision 

Code 

 

Description 

APP 

REF 

P1REQ 

P3APP 

P4APP 

Approve 

Refuse  

Prior Approval Required 

Prior Approval Approved 

Prior Approval Approved 

RNO 

ROB 

P2NRQ 

P3REF 

P4REF 

Raise no objection  

Raise Objection  

Prior Approval Not Required 

Prior Approval Refused 

Prior Approval Refused 

 

 

West Oxfordshire District Council – DELEGATED ITEMS 

Week Ending 4th October 2021 

 

  

Application Number.  

 

Ward. 

 

 Decision. 

 

 

1.  21/00341/FUL Freeland and Hanborough APP 

  

Erection of two semi detached dwellings and associated parking 

St Johns Brigade Headquaters Pinsley Road Long Hanborough 

Cottsway Housing 

 

 

Page 35

Agenda Item 5



DELGAT 
 

2.  21/00694/LBC Ascott and Shipton APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Internal and external alterations to include the replacement of a UPVC dormer window with 

timber frames and the construction of two dormers to rear elevation (amended plans). 

17 High Street Shipton Under Wychwood Chipping Norton 

Ms Amelia Harvey 

 

 

3.  21/00693/HHD Ascott and Shipton APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Alterations to include the insertion of rear dormers (amended plans). 

17 High Street Shipton Under Wychwood Chipping Norton 

Ms Amelia Harvey 

 

 

4.  21/00842/HHD Chadlington and Churchill APP 

  

Alterations to include erection of single and two storey rear extension, construction of new 

detached garage and refurbishment of existing 'pigsty' outbuilding (amended plans). 

Normans 3 Church Road Chadlington 

Mr Michael Smith 

 

 

5.  21/00867/FUL Hailey, Minster Lovell and 

Leafield 

WDN 

  

Erection of Agricultural Livestock Building 

Fairspear Hill Farm Fairspear Road Leafield 

Mr And Mrs Adams 

 

 

6.  21/00868/FUL Hailey, Minster Lovell and 

Leafield 

WDN 

  

Erection of an Agricultural Straw and Machinery Storage Barn. 

Fairspear Hill Farm Fairspear Road Leafield 

Mr And Mrs Adams 

 

 

7.  21/00869/FUL Hailey, Minster Lovell and 

Leafield 

WDN 

  

Erection of Agricultural Livestock Building. 

Fairspear Hill Farm Fairspear Road Leafield 

Mr And Mrs Adams 

 

 

Page 36



DELGAT 
 

8.  21/01050/HHD Chipping Norton APP 

  

Porch extension to front, a loft conversion, including insertion of dormer window, multiple 

roof lights, changes to exterior facade, and new landscaping and boundary treatments to 

garden 

4 Burford Road Chipping Norton Oxfordshire 

MR ANDREW WALKER 

 

 

9.  21/01582/FUL Stonesfield and Tackley APP 

  

Change of use of land to equestrian use along with the erection of two single storey 

stable/barns, a jump store and a wash box. Formation of an outdoor horse arena and 

associated landscaping and provision of wildlife pond (amended proposal) 

Middlefield House Lower Whitehill Tackley 

Mr and Mrs Geday 

 

 

10.  21/01858/HHD Charlbury and Finstock APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Demolition of conservatory and first floor over stone building. Erection of carport/garage and 

additions to existing link building (amended plans). 

Spellwood 4 Spelsbury Villas Spelsbury Road 

Mr And Mrs Sinclair 

 

 

11.  21/01962/FUL Kingham, Rollright and Enstone WDN 

  

Erection of an agricultural workers dwelling and associated landscaping 

Quarry Farm Banbury Road Great Tew 

Great Tew And Bantham Estates 

 

 

12.  21/01970/FUL Stonesfield and Tackley APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Alterations to existing garage and the construction an additional garage and three outbuildings 

comprising gardeners office and two storage sheds together with associated works. 

Little Manor Church Hill Tackley 

Ms H Vukadinovic 

 

 

13.  21/01986/CND Brize Norton and Shilton APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Discharge of condition 4 (full surface water drainage scheme) of planning permission 

19/02822/HHD 

The Old Vicarage Asthall Burford 

Mr/s K Wait 

 

 

Page 37



DELGAT 
 

14.  21/02002/HHD Kingham, Rollright and Enstone APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Erection of single and two storey extensions together with new pitch roof over existing living 

room, changes to fenestration and insertion of various rooflights. 

2 Orchard Way Kingham Chipping Norton 

Mr James Mathias 

 

 

15.  21/02005/HHD Kingham, Rollright and Enstone APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Erection of natural oak garden room 

Hawthorn Cottage Chapel Hill Swerford 

Mr & Mrs Jonathan Drinkwater 

 

 

16.  21/02006/FUL Stonesfield and Tackley APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Installation of an outdoor swimming pool, alterations to existing outbuildings to provide 

changing facilities and storage of plant and equipment. (Amended description) 

Dorn Valley Barn Wootton Woodstock 

Vanbrugh Unit Trust 

 

 

17.  21/02182/HHD Ascott and Shipton APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Erection of a single storey rear extension. 

Dove Cottage High Street Shipton Under Wychwood 

Mr Tim Vickers 

 

 

18.  21/02223/HHD Kingham, Rollright and Enstone APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Proposed extension & internal alterations including: replace old boiler shed with new boiler 

room with pool changing facilities. Re-instatement of glass house linked to the Coach House. 

Demolition of stables & garden store building and construction of a carport & garden store 

Old Pound House The Green Kingham 

Mr & Mrs Blomefield 

 

 

Page 38



DELGAT 
 

19.  21/02224/LBC Kingham, Rollright and Enstone APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Proposed extension & internal alterations indluding: replace old boiler shed with new boiler 

room with pool changing facilities.  Re-instatement of glass house linked to the Coach House.  

Demolition of stables & garden store building and construction of a carport & garden store 

Old Pound House The Green Kingham 

Mr & Mrs Blomefield 

 

 

20.  21/02273/CND Ascott and Shipton APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Discharge of condition 16 (school parking area construction, surfacing and lay out) of planning 

permission 19/00036/S73 

Land South Of Milton Road Shipton Under Wychwood 

Deanfield Homes 

 

 

21.  21/02275/LBC Stonesfield and Tackley APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Alterations to both main and pavilion entrances to include replacements gates, new stone 

piers and walling. 

Wootton Place Church Street Wootton 

JPPC 

 

 

22.  21/02286/HHD Milton Under Wychwood APP 

  

Garage conversion to living space and changes to fenestration 

5 The Square Milton Under Wychwood Chipping Norton 

Mr And Mrs Pratt 

 

 

23.  21/02300/HHD Charlbury and Finstock APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Proposed alterations to basement: enlarge external hatch opening on rear elevation, 

installation of new timber door and limecrete slab, external stone steps and rear landscaping 

works around the basement entrance. Removal of concrete chimney, asbestos drain and 

timber prop, proposed lath and lime plaster ceiling with insulation. Replacement timber 

pedestrian and vehicle gates and new landscaping on driveway. Existing external door on the 

single storey extension on the front elevation to be painted to match the existing fenestration 

and main entrance door. Internal alterations include: to replacement floorboards with wider 

boards to match the historical boards, replacement masonry fireplace surround. Installation of 

wood burning stove (amended plans). 

1 Rose Cottages Fawler Chipping Norton 

Dr Sarah Ball 

 

 

Page 39



DELGAT 
 

24.  21/02301/LBC Charlbury and Finstock APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Proposed alterations to basement: enlarge external hatch opening on rear elevation, 

installation of new timber door and limecrete slab, external stone steps and rear landscaping 

works around the basement entrance. Removal of concrete chimney, asbestos drain and 

timber prop, proposed lath and lime plaster ceiling with insulation. Replacement timber 

pedestrian and vehicle gates and new landscaping on driveway. Existing external door on the 

single storey extension on the front elevation to be painted to match the existing fenestration 

and main entrance door. Internal alterations include: to replacement floorboards with wider 

boards to match the historical boards, replacement masonry fireplace surround. Installation of 

wood burning stove. 

1 Rose Cottages Fawler Chipping Norton 

Dr Sarah Ball 

 

 

25.  21/02312/HHD Brize Norton and Shilton APP 

  

Erection of single storey extension. 

Northfield House Sturt Farm Oxford Road 

Mr Michael Scott 

 

 

26.  21/02346/HHD Kingham, Rollright and Enstone APP 

  

Conversion of existing domestic outbuilding to garden pavilion comprising gym, sauna, steam 

room, loggia bar and changing facilities. Provision of gravel track. 

Church Enstone Hall Little Tew Road Church Enstone 

Mr P Cornet De Ways Ruart 

 

 

27.  21/02374/FUL Stonesfield and Tackley APP 

  

Extension to existing grain and agricultural machinery store. 

Land To The North Of Disused Reservoir Rousham Road Tackley 

Mr Ron Varney 

 

 

28.  21/02382/CLE Stonesfield and Tackley APP 

  

Certificate of lawfulness (To allow the continued use of a building formally created as a shoot 

hut/estate/forestry operations office, as a residential dwelling). 

Land North Of Fox Hill Tackley 

Mr J Schicht 

 

 

29.  21/02469/HHD Woodstock and Bladon APP 

  

Erection of a first floor side extension above existing garage and parking space. 

10 Blackberry Way Woodstock Oxfordshire 

Mr Robert Gosling 

 

 

Page 40



DELGAT 
 

30.  21/02449/HHD Chadlington and Churchill APP 

  

Replacement of existing UPVC windows and bi-fold doors with timber flush casements (with 

two windows in North elevation and bi-fold doors being wider). 

10 Manor Court Chadlington Chipping Norton 

Viv Davies 

 

 

31.  21/02525/HHD Milton Under Wychwood APP 

  

Removal of existing conservatory, erection of masonry ground floor extension, forming utility 

and cloaks 

19 Church Meadow Milton Under Wychwood Chipping Norton 

Mr Paul Hopkins 

 

 

32.  21/02475/CND Stonesfield and Tackley APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Discharge of conditions 4 (external wall sample), 5 (roof sample) and 8 (details of all external 

windows and doors) of planning permission 20/03450/HHD 

West End House West End Combe 

Mr Richard Sherrott 

 

 

33.  21/02526/HHD Hailey, Minster Lovell and 

Leafield 

APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Demolish existing porch and rebuild small washroom and utility 

Vine Cottage 99 Lower End Leafield 

Miss Robina Wickens 

 

 

34.  21/02515/FUL Chipping Norton REF 

  

Erection of detached dwelling with off street parking and garden space 

Land Off Toy Lane Chipping Norton 

Mr Robin Scotter 

 

 

35.  21/02524/FUL Kingham, Rollright and Enstone APP 

  

Erection of a self contained unit for holiday accommodation. 

The Meetings Little Tew Chipping Norton 

Miss Julie Andrews 

 

 

Page 41



DELGAT 
 

36.  21/02531/HHD Brize Norton and Shilton APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Alterations to outbuilding to include replacement of conservation rooflights with single bank 

of rooflights and reinstatement of timber stable door. 

Wychwood Lodge Swinbrook Burford 

Mr Kevin Arnold 

 

 

37.  21/02536/FUL Kingham, Rollright and Enstone APP 

  

Erection of detached dwelling together with associated works and provision of access. 

26 The Paddocks Enstone Chipping Norton 

Mr Martyn Eeley-Hardcastle 

 

 

38.  21/02539/S73 Woodstock and Bladon APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Non compliance of condition 2 of permission 17/04136/FUL to allow minor internal and 

external alterations to the approved plans for the garden studio building. 

Woodstock House Rectory Lane Woodstock 

Mr Tim Smissen 

 

 

39.  21/02542/HHD Woodstock and Bladon APP 

  

Erection of single storey rear extension together with external insulation and render to 

existing solid masonry walls. 

41 Heath Lane Bladon Woodstock 

Mr Simon Priscott 

 

 

40.  21/02584/S73 Woodstock and Bladon APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Non compliance of condition 2 of Listed Building Consent 17/04137/LBC to allow minor 

internal and external alterations to the approved plans for the garden studio building. 

Woodstock House Rectory Lane Woodstock 

Mr Tim Smissen 

 

 

41.  21/02610/HHD Hailey, Minster Lovell and 

Leafield 

APP 

  

Erection of double garage and store 

Crawley Hill Farm Foxburrow Lane Crawley 

Lewis Ross ESQ 

 

 

Page 42



DELGAT 
 

42.  21/02588/HHD Freeland and Hanborough APP 

  

Two storey side extension, detached garage, and 1.8m high fencing to part of front boundary 

1 Glyme Way Long Hanborough Witney 

Mr D Fraser 

 

 

43.  21/02614/HHD The Bartons WDN 

  

Proposed two storey side extension, with a pitched roof with flat roof dormer at the rear 

41 Worton Road Middle Barton Chipping Norton 

Mr Mark Bowerman 

 

 

44.  21/02616/LBC Charlbury and Finstock APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Internal alterations to include changes to floor layouts to create a downstairs WC (along with 

the insertion of an extraction fan to side elevation) and to enlarge the existing family 

bathroom along with alterations to existing chimney breast in kitchen. 

Bell Cottage 2 Church Street Charlbury 

Ms Lucy Skinner 

 

 

45.  21/02619/FUL Kingham, Rollright and Enstone APP 

  

Change of use of land to provide additional caravan storage. 

Merryweather Farm Hook Norton Road Chipping Norton 

White 

 

 

46.  21/02649/HHD Woodstock and Bladon APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Proposed single storey side extension 

4 Park Close Bladon Woodstock 

Mr & Mrs Jones 

 

 

47.  21/02656/HHD Freeland and Hanborough APP 

  

Single storey front extension 

Pinsley Wood Barn 186 Main Road Long Hanborough 

Mr Burgess 

 

 

48.  21/02659/FUL Milton Under Wychwood APP 

  

Change of use of part of existing garage to a beauty salon 

Green Mount Frog Lane Milton Under Wychwood 

Miss Ciara O'Brien 

 

 

Page 43



DELGAT 
 

49.  21/02661/HHD Kingham, Rollright and Enstone APP 

  

Extensions and alterations to side and rear of existing dwelling 

Kiteney House Hull Farm Stratford Road 

Mr and Mrs Longsdon 

 

 

50.  21/02666/HHD Woodstock and Bladon APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Demolition of existing garage, insertion of new vehicle gates, extension of parking 

hardstanding 

24 Park Street Woodstock Oxfordshire 

Caroline Beaumont 

 

 

51.  21/02667/LBC Woodstock and Bladon APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Demolition of existing garage, insertion of new vehicle gates, extension of parking 

hardstanding 

24 Park Street Woodstock Oxfordshire 

Caroline Beaumont 

 

 

52.  21/02671/HHD Freeland and Hanborough APP 

  

Proposed conversion of first floor of an existing garage to create an annex 

Broadview Broadmarsh Lane Freeland 

C/O Agent 

 

 

53.  21/02675/S73 Kingham, Rollright and Enstone APP 

  

Variation of conditions 2 and 4 of permission 21/01576/S73 to allow changes to the siting, 

design and appearance of the huts with associated changes to the landscaping scheme (Part 

Retrospective) 

Soho Farmhouse Great Tew Chipping Norton 

Soho House Group UK Limited 

 

 

54.  21/02738/FUL Ascott and Shipton APP 

  

Erection of detached double garage to serve dwelling currently under construction. 

Brookvale Shipton Road Milton Under Wychwood 

Mr Andrew Prew 

 

 

Page 44



DELGAT 
 

55.  21/02714/HHD Chadlington and Churchill APP 

  

Amendments to approved Application 20/02378/HHD confirmation of flat roof covering, 

insertion of a roof light 

9 Manor Court Chadlington Chipping Norton 

Dr Williams 

 

 

56.  21/02717/HHD Ascott and Shipton APP 

  

Single storey rear extension 

The Briars 2 Meadowbank Close Ascott Under Wychwood 

Mr & Mrs Stratford 

 

 

57.  21/02729/LBC Burford APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Internal and external alterations to include the replacement of the existing staircase and front 

door 

Lower Farm Taynton Burford 

Dowdeswell Architecture And Design 

 

 

58.  21/02732/HHD Chipping Norton APP 

  

Loft conversion to create extra bedroom 

12 Coopers Square Chipping Norton Oxfordshire 

Mr Matt Packham 

 

 

59.  21/02734/LBC Kingham, Rollright and Enstone APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Internal and external works to renovate existing property, including alterations to 

fenestration, addition of rooflights, enclosure of rear entrance porch and some changes to 

internal layout. 

Cowslip East End Swerford 

Mr David Reay 

 

 

60.  21/02736/HHD Charlbury and Finstock APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Installation of an electric car charging unit. 

14 Hill Close Charlbury Chipping Norton 

Ms Elaine Kazimierczuk 

 

 

Page 45



DELGAT 
 

61.  21/02747/HHD Chipping Norton APP 

  

Single storey front extension and installation of dormers in place of existing rooflights. 

69 Cotswold Crescent Chipping Norton Oxfordshire 

Mr David Shadbolt 

 

 

62.  21/02753/HHD Ascott and Shipton APP 

  

Two storey extension to south elevation, form porch to new entrance. Change of material to 

front gable from render to stone., change of material to remainder of front elevation and all of 

south elevation from render to timber cladding. 

Little Pips 53 Shipton Road Ascott Under Wychwood 

Mr And Mrs Morris 

 

 

63.  21/02755/HHD Ascott and Shipton APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Erection of link corridor and refurbishment of existing garage 

April Cottage Burford Road Shipton Under Wychwood 

Mr Andrew Melvin 

 

 

64.  21/02773/HHD The Bartons APP 

  

Proposed extension over garage 

14 Kirby Close Middle Barton Chipping Norton 

Jamie Newell 

 

 

65.  21/02780/NMA Chadlington and Churchill APP 

  

Conversion of extension of existing agricultural buildings to form one dwelling along with 

extensions to the existing cottages to create ancillary accommodation. Works to include the 

erection of a car port with store and demolition of one barn (non-material amendment to 

allow changes to fenestration, doors, flues and internal layout together with extended roof 

overhang of new corridor). 

Lower Buildings Green End Chadlington 

Mr O Corbett 

 

 

66.  21/02810/S73 The Bartons APP 

  

Variation of condition 3 of planning permission 19/03402/HHD to allow the use of Redland 

Duoplain Rustic Brown roof tiles. (Retrospective). 

27 Marshall Crescent Middle Barton Chipping Norton 

Mr Simon North 

 

 

Page 46



DELGAT 
 

67.  21/02813/HHD Burford APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Erection of domestic greenhouse within the curtilage of a listed building 

180 The Hill Burford Oxfordshire 

RW and JM Ross 

 

 

68.  21/02830/CLP Woodstock and Bladon APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Certificate of Lawfulness (erection of detached ancillary building comprising guest annex suite 

and gym). 

Woodlands 24 Manor Road Bladon 

Mr Eguchi 

 

 

69.  21/02914/CND Charlbury and Finstock APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Discharge of conditions 7 (traffic management plan), 9 (existing and proposed ground levels 

and finished floor levels) and 10 (Arboricultural Method Statement) of planning permission 

18/02071/HHD 

18 Sandford Park Charlbury Chipping Norton 

Mr Fergus McVey 

 

 

70.  21/02921/LBC Woodstock and Bladon WDN 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

External redecoration of the hotel. External render repainted, existing woodwork: windows 

and doors repainted and repaired where necessary. All finishing colours as existing 

The Bear Hotel Park Street Woodstock 

Allan Starkey 

 

 

71.  21/02969/CND Freeland and Hanborough APP 

  

Discharge of condition 17 (Construction Environmental Management Plan) of planning 

permission 18/03403/FUL 

Olivers Garage 80 - 82 Main Road Long Hanborough 

Rectory Homes Ltd 

 

 

72.  21/02993/PDET28 Kingham, Rollright and Enstone P4REF 

  

Construction of agricultural barn for the storage of hay and straw. 

Barn At Churchill Road Kingham 

Mr And Mrs Peachey 

 

 

Page 47



DELGAT 
 

73.  21/03032/LBC Kingham, Rollright and Enstone WDN 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Erection of an electric car charging point in the garden, to be mounted on a Tesla-approved 

mounting post 

The Old Post Office Main Street Over Norton 

Dr Dipak Kalra 

 

 

74.  21/03086/PDET28 Chadlington and Churchill P2NRQ 

  

Construction of a cattle shed. 

Curdle Hill Farmhouse Chipping Norton Road Chadlington 

Mr J Clarkson 

 

 

 
 
Appeal Decisions 

 

 

 

Appeal  Decision 

 

 

Appeal Ref: APP/D3125/X/21/3270698 - Annex at 

Bondeni Station Road, Kingham, CHIPPING 

NORTON, OX7 6UH 

 

 

Dismissed 

 

Appeal Ref: APP/D3125/D/21/3276494 - 28 

Grove Road, Bladon, Woodstock, Oxfordshire 

OX20 1RD 

 

 

The appeal is dismissed insofar 

as it relates to the garage and 

two storey rear and side 

extension. The appeal is allowed 

insofar as it relates to the front 

porch and planning permission is 

granted for the construction of 

an unenclosed front porch at 28 

Grove Road, Bladon, 

Woodstock, Oxfordshire OX20 

1RD 

 

 
 
 

Page 48


	Agenda
	1 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	4 Applications for Development
	5 Applications Determined under Delegated Powers and Appeal Decisions

